

DAIKIRI Erklärbare Diagnostische KI für industrielle Daten

Project Number: 01IS19085

Start Date of Project: 01/01/2020

Duration: 30 months

Deliverable 6.2: Prototypical Implementation and Evaluation

Dissemination Level	Public
Due Date of Deliverable	Month 30, 30/06/2022
Actual Submission Date	Month 30, 30/06/2022
Work Package	WP6 - Use Cases
Task	T6.12
Туре	Report
Approval Status	Final
Version	1.0
Number of Pages	17

Abstract: This deliverable presents the results of the final and successful prototypical implementation of the DAIKIRI pipeline for a dedicated use case in the field of logistics. Further, we present another use case and its data analysis. However, for this case it turned out, that the DAIKIRI pipeline has no value due to the defined hypotheses and the data characteristics.

The information in this document reflects only the author's views and the Federal Ministry of Education and Research (BMBF) is not liable for any use that may be made of the information contained therein. The information in this document is provided "as is" without guarantee or warranty of any kind, express or implied, including but not limited to the fitness of the information for a particular purpose. The user thereof uses the information at his/ her sole risk and liability.



This project has received funding from the Federal Ministry of Education and Research (BMBF) within the project DAIKIRI under the grant no 01IS19085.



History

Version	Date	Reason	Revised by
0.0	14/06/2022	First draft created	Carolin Walter
0.1	20/06/2022	Draft revised	Jean Chorin
0.2	28/06/2022	Draft revised	Mohammad Sajjadi
0.3	30/06/2022	Final version created	Martin Voigt
1.0	30/06/2022	Final version submitted	Carolin Walter

Author List

Organization	Name	Contact Information
elevait	Jean Chorin	jean.chorin@elevait.de
elevait	Mohammad Sajjadi	mohammad.sajjadi@elevait.de
elevait	Martin Voigt	martin.voigt@elevait.de
USU	Carolin Walter	carolin.walter@usu.com



Contents

1	Intr	oduction	3						
2	Usi	sing the DAIKIRI Platform for Smart Logistics Use Case							
	2.1	Create an Ontology from CSV	3						
	2.2	Label the data points	4						
	2.3	Get the explanations from SML	4						
	2.4	Other modes of usage	5						
3	Ana	alysis and Classification of Documents	7						
	3.1	Description of the data	7						
	3.2	First hypothesis	9						
	3.3	First analysis	9						
	3.4	Interpretation of the results of the first analysis	12						
	3.5	Second hypothesis	12						
	3.6	Second analysis	13						
	3.7	Interpretation of the results	14						
	3.8	Conclusion for the Use Case	17						



1 Introduction

2 Using the DAIKIRI Platform for Smart Logistics Use Case

Up to now the components of the DAIKIRI pipeline were developed independently of the use case and evaluated mainly on benchmarking datasets. In this section we describe what has to be done to adapt the pipeline of the DAIKIRI platform to a specific use case, in our example the smart logistics use case. The smart logistic use case is described in Deliverable 6.1. We use the complete pipeline where the white box approach is used in combination with the black box approach and the SML approach. This pipeline is depicted in Figure 1.



Figure 1: The figure shows a DAIKIRI pipeline with the combination of black-box and white-box approach and SML.

In the course of implementing the smart logistics use case in the DAIKIRI pipeline, we found that a non-variable index for the data points is helpful. Otherwise, the naming of the events does not remain consistent if they are numbered chronologically as soon as the data record under consideration changes, for example when splitting the data record into train, test and validation set. Therefore, a hash is now created directly for each data point in the CSV file. This is an MD5 hash that is calculated across all features of the data point. In the ontology, this hash is then the name of the individual.

2.1 Create an Ontology from CSV

As part of the white box approach (upper part in figure 1), an ontology is created for the data from the CSV file. In the combined pipeline, the data of the test data set are used in the white box approach, as the predictions are made on this set in the black box approach to determine the positive and negative examples. Thereby the pipeline is used in an unsupervised mode. The names of the individuals in the ontology must include the individuals of the positive and negative examples. The dataframe of the test dataset is vectorized using the Vectograph library. The embeddings are then calculated. For this purpose, we used the Knowledge Graph Embedding Model SHALLOM for the Smart Logistic Use Case. The clusters on the embeddings of the Logistic Use Case were calculated via kmeans. With LabENT, the clusters can then be labeled. And from this the ontology is created. Since the structure of the data is very flat, further cross-connections between the entities, the object properties, and the literals, the data properties, were calculated at this point and inserted into the ontology. This ontology is then used as one of the inputs for the SML and verbalization. It is stored



under the name semantification.owl.

2.2 Label the data points

Parallel to the white box pipeline, the black box approach (lower part in figure 1) can be run. In this way the input data set does not need to be labeled. For this purpose, a suitable black box model must first be found, which can be trained on the existing data set and whose predictions have a good accuracy. This black box model for the Smart logistic use case was developed and is described in Deliverable 4.3. As part of the pipeline, the model is trained on the training data set. The learned model is then used to make the predictions for the test datas et. The hashes for data points with predicted anomalies are stored in a file named pos.txt. The hashes of the normal cases are written to the file neg.txt.

2.3 Get the explanations from SML

Now the three inputs for the SML approach (rear part in Figure 1) are available. With the help of the Onotlearn library, an intrinsically explainable model is learned from ontology and the positive and negative examples. The outputs of the model are converted into natural language via the RAKI Verbalizer. This explains the SML model. The explanations for the model of the Logistic Use Case are shown in Figure 2 and Figure 3. Each line shows a different concept. These explanations are stored in a CSV file after the combined pipeline has been completed.

	ID	Axiom	Rendered Axiom	verbalization
0	1	EquivalentClasses(<https: dice-research.org="" p<="" th=""><th>Pred_1 EquivalentTo: positive_stock_cha</th><th>Every pred 1 is something whose positive stock</th></https:>	Pred_1 EquivalentTo: positive_stock_cha	Every pred 1 is something whose positive stock
1	2	EquivalentClasses(<https: dice-research.org="" p<="" th=""><th>Pred_6 EquivalentTo: stock_diff some</th><th>Every pred 6 is something whose stock diff is</th></https:>	Pred_6 EquivalentTo: stock_diff some	Every pred 6 is something whose stock diff is
2	4	EquivalentClasses(owl:Thing <https: dice-rese<="" th=""><th>Thing EquivalentTo: Pred_2</th><th>Everything is a pred 2.</th></https:>	Thing EquivalentTo: Pred_2	Everything is a pred 2.
3	7	EquivalentClasses(<http: daikiri-projekt.de="" e<="" th=""><th>StockDiff0 EquivalentTo:<th>Every stock diff 0 is a pred 0.</th></th></http:>	StockDiff0 EquivalentTo:<th>Every stock diff 0 is a pred 0.</th>	Every stock diff 0 is a pred 0.
4	13	EquivalentClasses(<https: dice-research.org="" p<="" th=""><th>Pred_9 EquivalentTo: old_stock some<</th><th>Every pred 9 is something whose old stock is g</th></https:>	Pred_9 EquivalentTo: old_stock some<	Every pred 9 is something whose old stock is g
5	15	EquivalentClasses(<https: dice-research.org="" p<="" th=""><th>Pred_7 EquivalentTo: replenished_at </th><th>Every pred 7 is something that replenisheds at</th></https:>	Pred_7 EquivalentTo: replenished_at 	Every pred 7 is something that replenisheds at
6	17	EquivalentClasses(<http: daikiri-projekt.de="" e<="" th=""><th>Event EquivalentTo: Pred_4</th><th>Every event is a pred 4.</th></http:>	Event EquivalentTo: Pred_4	Every event is a pred 4.
7	21	EquivalentClasses(<http: daikiri-projekt.de="" e<="" th=""><th>StockDiff EquivalentTo: Pred_3</th><th>Every stock diff is a pred 3.</th></http:>	StockDiff EquivalentTo: Pred_3	Every stock diff is a pred 3.
8	25	EquivalentClasses(<https: dice-research.org="" p<="" th=""><th>Pred_8 EquivalentTo: replenished_at </th><th>Every pred 8 is something that replenisheds at</th></https:>	Pred_8 EquivalentTo: replenished_at 	Every pred 8 is something that replenisheds at
9	29	EquivalentClasses(<https: dice-research.org="" p<="" th=""><th>Pred_5 EquivalentTo: stock_diff some</th><th>Every pred 5 is something whose stock diff is</th></https:>	Pred_5 EquivalentTo: stock_diff some	Every pred 5 is something whose stock diff is

Figure 2: The figure shows the output of the verbalizer.



Every pred 1 is something whose positive stock change is false.
Every pred 6 is something whose stock diff is lower than or equals to 1874700.0.
Every stock diff 0 is a pred 2.
Every pred 9 is something whose old stock is greater than or equals to 0.0.
Every pred 7 is something that replenisheds at greater than or equals to 2018-03-05 22:31:21.
Every stock diff is a pred 4.
Every stock diff is a pred 3.
Every pred 8 is something that replenisheds at lower than or equals to 2018-07-09 05:03:31.
Every pred 5 is something whose stock diff is greater than or equals to -2300.0.

Figure 3: The figure shows how the explanations look like.

2.4 Other modes of usage

The methods of the black box and white box approach can also be used separately from each other. Then the white box pipeline requires some labeled instances on which the SML can learn. These labels can be included in the ontology. The standalone version of the white box pipeline is depicted in 4.



Figure 4: The figure shows a supervised mode of the DAIKIRI pipeline for the white box approach.

The black box pipeline can also be used for itself. For this purpose, we have tried out existing methods for the explainability of black box models shown in Deliverable D4.3. In the independent black box pipeline, we have implemented SHAP as an explainer. The resulting pipeline is shown in 5.



Figure 5: The figure shows the DAIKIRI pipeline in a stand alone version of the black box approach.

Individual data points of the test data set are explained here. Since SHAP does not provide adequately readable explanations for non-ML-specialist, we have further processed the SHAP values in a post-processing step. It displays only the most important features that are critical to a prediction and the value of the feature at that data point. The output is converted rule-based to natural language

	qty_change	reorder_reference	timedelta_1	qty_change_1	is_order_1	l_rel_ref_diff_delta	g_rel_noise_sgn	exp
hash								
ca99b76950d8f9be3b3f3110317483e0	579.0	300.0	-13.0	200.0	1.0	1.263333	1.557985	This be
2a640254ad2160f9e4b4ede11e217b7	301.0	480.0	-16.0	300.0	1.0	0.002083	2.127273	This be
16c95425f7820ae7f21607fc0ddabd69	1.0	600.0	86461.0	-1.0	0.0	0.000000	-0.956427	This a r
896d3b4d5f95fe59f23460fb4e03849f	-3.0	3266.0	431881.0	-5.0	0.0	-0.000612	-0.984038	This a r
e91cc40cfa6ec9db33828ed285f00ee3	-2.0	0.0	86457.0	-4.0	0.0	-200.000000	-0.452055	This a n

and stored in a CSV file. Some of the output is shown in Figure 6 and Figure 7.

Figure 6: The figure shows the output of the verbalizer.

This instance shows normal behaviour. This instance is an anomaly. This was mainly influenced by is_order_1 is 0.0 and timedelta_1 is 28803.0. Additionally, reorder_reference is 1500.0. This instance is an anomaly. This was mainly influenced by is_order_1 is 0.0 and l_rel_ref_diff is 200.0. This instance shows normal behaviour. This instance shows normal behaviour. This instance is an anomaly. This was mainly influenced by is_order_1 is 0.0 and timedelta 1 is 28768.0. Additionally, l_rel_chnge_diff is 1.5. This instance shows normal behaviour. This instance is an anomaly. This was mainly influenced by is_order_1 is 0.0 and timedelta_1 is 27900.0. Additionally, timedelta_2 is 1641542.0. This instance shows normal behaviour. This instance is an anomaly. This was mainly influenced by is_order_1 is 0.0 and timedelta_1 is 32576.00000000004. Additionally, reorder_reference is 1250.0. This instance shows normal behaviour. This instance shows normal behaviour. This instance shows normal behaviour. This instance is an anomaly. This was mainly influenced by l_rel_ref_diff is 100.0 and is_order_1 is 0.0. This instance shows normal behaviour. This instance shows normal behaviour. This instance shows normal behaviour. This instance shows normal behaviour.

Figure 7: The figure shows how the explanations look like.



3 Analysis and Classification of Documents

The 2nd use case provided by elevait is based on the product **in:forms**. Here, information is extracted from template-based documents. In our productive deployments with customers we see several quality issues in the documents (bad handwriting's or scans) or how the documents are filled, so that validation rules are hit. The idea of the use case is to identify automatically clusters of documents which have dedicated quality issues in common. This migh give the possibility to address these in detail and over-time to improve the automation rate for the machine learning based information extraction.

3.1 Description of the data

elevait in:forms allows customers to send scanned forms as image or PDF to extract information automatically. Such information include manually written text, if a checkbox was checked or not, or just to classify content on other dimensions if needed. Each piece of information is given a semantic class from a predefined set of ontologies, for instance the one called *numeric:ck* (a numeric value extracted from text) or *boolean:farbe* (the state of a checkbox). Because the extractions are performed by machine learning models, a prediction confidence is also computed for each field. Finally, inference and/or validation shapes can be applied on the extracted values. The customers can leverage multiple forms, with different text fields and/or checkboxes. Thus, an incoming form must first be matched to an available template. A cropped example of such form can be found in Figure 8.



Figure 8: Example of a form with text fields as boxes and checkboxes.

The actual process of data extraction is as follow:

- 1. A scanned form is sent as image or PDF;
- 2. The template which matches against the form layout is selected;
- 3. The text in the text boxes specified by the templates are detected and recognized (OCR), as well as the status of the checkboxes (checked or not);



Id	dateCreated	templateId	customerID	class	inference/UUID	validation/UUID	
6ed9	2021-08-19	4ad2	12121212	0.91	0	NaN	
f6e3	2021-08-05	f6e3	12345678	0.63	NaN	1	
d622	2021-08-26	d1c9	98989898	0.54	NaN	NaN	

Table 1: Simplified example of the content of the data

- 4. The inference shapes are applied. The shape can either succeed or fail, because some input was ill-formed. A value can be computed if the inputs were suitable;
- 5. The validation shapes are applied. The shape can either succeed or fail, because some input was ill-formed;
- 6. All the aforementioned values are stored in a database, along with the original form.

In the end, for each document various information is available, which is predefined by the semantic annotation of the template. For this use case, we are not interested in the content of each data point but more on the quality of extraction. This is related to the confidence of the applied machine learning models. For the use case, we reduce the dataset to the following attributes.

 $\mathbf{Id}~\mathrm{the}~\mathrm{UUID}~\mathrm{of}~\mathrm{the}~\mathrm{document}$

dateCreated the timestamp of the extraction

templateId the ID of the template which matches the form

customerNumber the ID of the customer who has sent the form

- *semantic classes* for each semantic class, the confidence for the extraction (between 0 and 1), or NaN if a semantic class is not linked to the template of the document
- inference-shape/UUID for each shape, a value of NaN, 0 or 1 is stored. NaN means the shape is not applied on the current template, 0 means the inference could be performed, 1 means an error occurred
- validation-shape / UUID for each shape, a value of NaN, 0 or 1 is stored. NaN means the shape is not applied on the current template, 0 means the validation was successful, 1 means it was not.

The complete information was exported to a CSV file which is the foundation of the analyses described below. A mock example of the content of the CSV file is shown in Table 1. Just note that a single semantic class, inference shape and validation shape are shown and that the date timestamps are simplified, as well as the UUIDs.

The actual final CSV file contains 62064 rows (one per document) and 3273 columns. There are 158 semantic classes, 576 validation shapes, and 2535 inference shapes. Due to the amount of inference shapes being quite high compared to the validation shapes and semantic classes, they will be removed from all operations to simplify the computations and analyses.



3.2 First hypothesis

The first hypothesis was that some customers systematically input wrong data, which creates extraction errors. This would, in turn, make the validation shapes being violated and the inference shapes not computed.

Thus, the original goal was to cluster the customers between the ones who often generate errors or violations with the shapes, the ones who do it with a smaller probability, and the ones who do it with a very low probability.

3.3 First analysis



Figure 9: Distribution of the number of documents per customer.

For a start, the amount of documents that each customer sent was computed. With these values, the amount of customer depending on the number of document can be plotted, see Figure 9 (with a logarithmic scale). We can see that most of the customers actually sent very few documents, roughly between 1 and 5. Also, few customers sent more than 55 documents. For most of the amount of documents sent above 55, only around 10 customers or less belong to each category.

For each validation shape applied on all documents, the distribution of the shapes with and without violation can be seen on Figure 10. Basically, for most shapes, no violation was found. Only a small amount of them were violated across all documents, around 5%.

However, if we group all documents which had at least one shape violated together, and all documents without any, the distribution obtained is presented on Figure 11. Most documents (around 30.000) had no rule violated, but close to 20.000 had at least one. Thus, almost 40% of all documents contain at least one error in the values extracted from the semantic classes, which led to a shape being violated.

Due to the hypothesis, our goal can be roughly defined as finding a correlation between each of





Figure 10: Distribution of the shapes for all documents without (0) and with violations (1).



Figure 11: Distribution of documents without any violations (True), and with violations (False).

the customers and the amount of shapes violated in the documents they provided. Thus, we should find if there is an influence of the customer on distribution of the violated shapes. If so, we are also interested in how the distribution is affected. To verify if we have a dependency, we created a second dataset, based on a copy of the original one. The only difference in this new one is that the column of *customerId* is randomized. Every document is affected to a random customer, but the distribution of customer is kept. This means that the amount of document for each customer stays the same, only the information of which document it sent is changed. In the remainder of the chapter, the original dataset will be defined as having "the original distribution", and the new dataset as having "the randomized distribution".

As a result, the distribution of the violated shapes changed as well for each customer in the randomized distribution. For each customer, for both datasets, the average amounts of violations across all documents of a customer were computed. The resulting histogram of the counts of these averages can be found on Figure 12 for the original distribution and Figure 13 for the randomized distribution. We can observe some difference: in the second case, the averages are closer to 0, while they are a bit more spread out in the first case. Indeed, most customers have less than 3 violations on figure 13, while the figure 15 shows that a large part of customers can have up to 5 violations on average. This tends to imply that some customers generated in general a higher amount of violated shapes, compared to the same customers distributed randomly. As a side note, the high bars which form a regular pattern are most probably artifacts obtained as a results of doing averages and other statistical operations.

Before further observing the differences between the datasets, we focused on the distribution of the customers depending on the ratio of documents with at least one violated shape. This is displayed





Figure 12: Distribution of the number of customer for each average number of violations (with original distribution).

on Figure 14 for the original distribution. On the left, the first column shows the amount of customers with documents with at least one violated shape. On the right, the last column shows the amount of customers with documents without any violated shape. In the middle, the columns around the average of 0.5 represents the customers who have half of their documents with at least one shape violated. As easily seen, most of the customers have either all documents with violated shapes, or none. After further analysis, this situation derived from the facts that most customers sent very few documents (see Figure 9). Thus, the threshold of 25 documents was chosen: we consider in the rest of the first analysis only customers who sent at least 25 documents. Below this number, we cannot have any good statistical behavior because the sample size is too small.

With this new threshold, we computed the distributions of the customers depending on violation shapes ratio and number of documents. The results are presented on Figure 15 for the original distribution and Figure 16 for the randomized distribution. The color of each hexagon represents the amount of customers presents on the surface of the hexagon. On the surface drawn by the hexagons with a darker shade, the density of documents is higher than on hexagons with a brighter shade.

Regarding the original distribution, we can observe that most customers have sent less than 50 documents. Also, a large part of the documents sent have a ratio of documents without any shape violated between 60% and 80%. The randomized distribution, on the other hand, have most documents with a ratio between 50% and 70%. Also, the distribution in general seems more spread out, with less central hexagons gathering all documents. The amount of less than 50 documents sent per customer is kept, which was expected, as only the attribution of customer to document was randomized, not the amount of document per customer.





Figure 13: Distribution of the number of customer for each average number of violations (with randomized distribution).

3.4 Interpretation of the results of the first analysis

By comparing Figures 15 and 16, we concluded that if we take a document given by a randomly attributed customer, its probability to have a ratio of documents with at least one violation shape is lower than with the originally attributed customer. This means that the customers have an influence on the violation shapes: for some customers, there is in general a higher probability that the document they send have at least one validation shape violated. Thus, some customers seem to send documents with errors with a higher probability.

However, also by comparing Figures 15 and 16, we can observe that the differences between the two distributions are not large enough: there is no clear separation. The trend of customers sending more failing documents is somehow diluted in the averages of violated shapes and depends also on the number of documents sent (cf the chosen threshold of 25).

3.5 Second hypothesis

Therefore, the second part will be focused on finding a relationship between the templates and the confidences of the semantic classes.

Each template has a defined list of semantic classes it contains. The classes can be present on multiple templates. For each of these classes, a confidence on the extraction process can be computed for a specific document. Thus, we can compare templates to find the ones where customers often made mistakes. These mistakes then can lead to validation shapes failing.

Hence, we make the hypothesis that some classes are linked to fields which can be difficult to extract, because the fields are too small, or the templates are misleading for the person filling them. We search for classes with low confidence over a large amount of documents.





Figure 14: Distribution of the different ratios of non-violated shapes for each customer.

Some constraints or parameters that we set to simplify the analysis:

- For our specific use case at elevait, and for the model for text extraction, a threshold of 0.85 for the confidence was chosen.
- There are semantic classes for checkboxes and for fields where text is written manually. As both use different models, we focus solely on the later classes, to reduce the scope of the analysis. In the end, only 91 semantic classes were kept.
- We also only consider the 30 templates with the highest number of documents to simplify the analysis and only keep the most relevant templates.

3.6 Second analysis

The original dataset was filtered to keep only the selected templates and "numeric" semantic classes. Then, for each "template - semantic class" pair, the amount of documents where the confidence is lower than the aforementioned threshold is computed. The result is presented in Figure 17. The templates are sorted in reverse order of amount of documents: many documents match the first template, while the last templates have few representatives. We can easily observe that the first templates are overrepresented compared to the lower ones.

The next step was to compare the amount of document per template and per class to the ratio of documents with low confidence (lower than the threshold). Thus, for each "template - semantic class" pair, the amount of values extracted with low confidence was divided by the total amount of values extracted for the pair. We obtain the ratio of extracted values for each class for each templates with confidence lower than the threshold. The obtained ratios are presented in Figure 18, where all values are percentages (between 0 and 100%). All values with dark purple color are at least 25%. So for the corresponding class and template, it means that at least a quarter of the documents had a low confidence on the related text field. Mainly, the class "numeric:cxYl", "numeric:cxYr", "numeric:czYl" and "numeric:czYr" (with $Y \in [1, 5]$) have the most frequent low confidences over all the different templates.

.





Figure 15: Distribution of the different ratios of non-violated shapes for each customer who sent more than 25 documents depending of the amount of documents they sent (with customer distribution).

3.7 Interpretation of the results

Some templates are very similar to each other. Semantic classes with the same always corresponds to the same conceptual value, even on different templates. For instance the length of the leg can be present on several forms which ask for legs and thigh measurements. The classes with a high ratio of low confidences mentioned in section 3.6 all belong to templates of forms made for hand measurements. An extract of such unfilled form can be seen on Figure 19, with the text field to be filled displayed in gray.

.





.

Figure 16: Distribution of the different ratios of non-violated shapes for each customer who sent more than 25 documents depending of the amount of documents they sent (with customer distribution).

numeric:bll numeric:bl numeric:blr numeric:blr numeric:cal	7554 5366 4033 2696 7603 5382 4040 2709 5613 3421 3083 2189 5630 3433 3076 2193	848 881 614 618	550 553 416 418	444	1		109 115 112 114	84 85 85 82 75 41 71 40 68		
numeric:cal numeric:ca numeric:ca numeric:cbl numeric:cbl numeric:cb numeric:ccl numeric:ccl	12566 8487 6639 4357 3346 3279 1826 12447 8360 6537 4326 3336 3203 1844 13411 9128 6954 4637 3362 3304 1853 13280 9016 6941 4627 3351 3229 1865 13176 9008 6819 4563 3361 3309 1855 13054 8892 6830 4550 3346 3232 1875	1366 759 1345 722 1479 1454 1448 763 1423 719 1229 727	913 751 508 896 744 513 940 757 513 930 755 518 929 763 515 918 753 518	396 453 406	337 298	235 16 241 16 221 16 239 16 219 240 15	1 225 211 187 197 6 221 201 183 185 225 213 205 195 221 204 200 185 225 212 196 198 222 221 196 198 222 212 196 198 221 204 192 185 6 6 192 185	70 161 140 125 168 139 124 169 145 173 173 144 166 162 145 172	81 130 83 123 131 125 82 131 84 125 91 76	- 14000
numericsCl numericsC numericsC numericsC numericsC numericsC numericsC numericsC numericsC numericsC numericsC numericsC numericsC	13627 9283 7041 4757 3366 3310 1864 13527 9167 7036 4734 352 3236 1885 1362 9231 7066 4777 3161 3141 1857 13539 9152 7066 4777 3361 3314 1857 15769 4665 3445 537 1567 1574 934 179 4662 3445 537 1567 1547 934 9910 4783 3525 2700 1670 1569 927 9800 4753 3505 2876 1654 542 1545 154 154 9804 4733 3505 2876 1634 1531 927 9804 4733 3505 2876 1531 272 3319 2797 1905 1511 252 193 133	1148 691 1208 1506 760 1137 1482 716 1235 1509 246 1147 1484 213 1247 727 91 1158 728 77 1243 753 1433 1243 754 1237 1243 746 444 75 75 75	958 759 512 945 755 519 953 754 512 946 751 516 448 380 272 451 378 269 450 365 275 453 376 263 453 363 267 211 50 43	389 378 392 380 392 382 403 385 396 382 397	354 293 336 301 348 294 342 301 357 293 340 304 356 300 336 292 350 294 311 290 354 287	240 288 16 215 242 16 238 289 16 86 247 55 94 293 54 22 292 11 241 291 241 291 241 292	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	171 160 177 149 171 157 176 146 73 79 75 73 79 82 81 78 35 44	83 76 93 78 131 83 81 125 95 21 131 86 16 125 97 5 70 86 4 68 93 69 45 93 69 67 93 67 7	- 12000
numeric:cn numeric:cl	3792 2780 1892 1508 246 188 105	447	212 47 40	93	35 34	32	8 32 49 10	34 40	7	
numeric csi numeric csi numeri	12516 8604 6550 4339 3356 3288 1844 12404 8359 6554 4316 3342 3223 1862	443 7300 715 740 741 741 741 741 741 741 741 741 741 741	912 757 515 897 750 518	445 405 451 406 451 261 261 236 457 405 455 405 455 405 455 405 197 175 434	5 5 1 5 5 2 1 6 6 7 3 3 1 5 5 2 5 7 3 4 4 6	204 16 204 16 182 15 191 15 196 15 194 15 198 15 198 15 197 15 187 144 2001 14 193 15 184 14 193 15 184 14 142 15 185 13 184 14 124 15 181 13 206 15	221 203 186 184 221 203 186 184 221 203 186 184 0 4 4 5 5 6 6	10 10 111 111 115 122 122 122 122 124 19 162 124 13 126 123 124 13 126 122 124 13 126 122 124 13 126 127 128 129 129 129 129 129 129 129 129	82 85 82 82 81 83 83 83 83 130 124 80 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83	- 10000
numericiat numericiat numericiat numericia numericia numericia numericia numericia numericia numericia numericia numericia	1494 1143 826 630 1285 1293 705 1870 1322 1021 770 1652 1541 905 7292 1335 636 4253 3101 3009 1706 7495 4467 4155 2874 1766 1777 1074 72156 6277 6429 4193 3538 3007 1692 7389 4376 4105 2833 1774 1077	746 729 782 739 177 231 1306 870 1272 835	171 338 197 185 428 252 902 663 475 547 414 311 883 659 474 541 409 311			251 15 249 16 204 16 214 16	8	40 41 25 26 161 152 105 70 158 152 103 71	78 85 86 60 73 124 70 124 69	- 6000
numeric:lcc1 numeric:lcc1 numeric:lcd numeric:lcd numeric:lce numeric:lce		1657 1006 1617 1150 1010 259 1086 244 1063 95 1106*****80*		473 479 289 356 297 363	488 84 479 135 306 258 343 279 308 258 • 340 281•	403 402 94 206 60 82 281 51 24 205 16 *24**279**9	0 1 6 9	1	442 442 89 20 85 16 90 6 84* 5*	
numeric:lct numeric:lct numeric:lcg numeric:lcg numeric:lc	12-1561 847/3 5514 4369 3101 3014 1704	1052 1097 1051 1091 1324	910 664 475	309 362 295 362	296 249 338 275 297 249 335 272	206 277 203 276	223 213 198 187	162 158	87 84 87 84 123	Page 15

.





Figure 18: For the most frequent templates and each numeric class, the percentage of templates where the confidence for the value extraction for the class is lower than the threshold.





Figure 19: Cropped example of a form for hand measurement.

On the example form, some fields overlap, are quite small, or their name or what they represent may not be clear for every person. Thus, even though the confidence may be quite low, the reason is unclear: the templates may be ill-formed, the fields could be better chosen, but also the model or pre-processing could be insufficient for the extraction of the text to be optimal. The conclusion of the second analysis is that some semantic classes really have a higher probability of having low confidence, but with the current state, no actual satisfying explanation can be found. Further analysis would be necessary to find the actual cause: checking or changing the size of the fields, changing the model, or other action which would be a lot more effort and time-consuming.

3.8 Conclusion for the Use Case

In the previous sections, we defined 2 distinct hypothesis on the given dataset which are interesting for the customers of the product in:forms. They are expected to give some improvement for the automated extraction if they are true. Before developing a clustering or classification approach to be implemented within the DAIKIRI pipeline, we did in-depth statistical analysis for both ideas. Unfortunately, the outcome of the investigations show that the hypotheses are not that useful for the project:

- **Hypothesis 1**: It was not possible to identify specific classes of customers doing common errors. On one hand, the distance is small as well as the number of potential clusters, e.g., to make use of algorithms like k-means, is not obvious.
- Hypothesis 2: Analyzing the issues on a template or their contained fields with semantic classes support that hypothesis, however, it just underlines already known problems of small fields in a small set of templates. The customers are aware of it already. This is in the end a simple analysis where the DAIKIRI pipeline has no practical value.

Due to this considerations and the missing value in research as well as for the practical use case, we decided not to implement the use cases within the DAIKIRI pipeline.